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Effective Date: 08-06-2004 

4781.121 Investigation of violations; hearings; penalties. 

(A) The manufactured homes commission, pursuant to section 4781.04 of the Revised COde, may 
investigate any person who allegedly has committed a violation. If, after an investigation the 

commission determines that reasonable evidence exists that a person has committed a violation, 
within seven days after that determination, the commission shall send a written notice to that person 
in the same manner as prescribed in section 119.07 of the Revised Code for licensees, except that the 

notice shall specify that a hearing will be held and specify the date, time, and place of the hearing. 

(B) The commission shall hold a hearing regarding the alleged violation in the same manner prescribed 
for an adjudication hearing under section 119.09 of the Revised Code. If the commission, after the 

hearing, determines that a Violation has occurred, the commission, upon an affirmative vote of five of 
its members, may impose a fine not exceeding one thousand dollars per violation per day. The 
commission's determination is an order that the person may appeal in accordance with section 119.12 

of the Revised Code. 

(C) If the person who allegedly committed a violation fails to appear for a hearing, the commission 

may request the court of common pleas of the county where the alleged Violation occurred to compel 

the person to appear before the commission for a hearing. 

(D) If the commission assesses a person a civil penalty for a violation and the person fails to pay that 

civil penalty within the time period prescribed by the commission pursuant to section 131.02 of the 

Revised Code, the commission shall forward to the attorney general the name of the person and the 
amount of the civil penalty for the purpose of collecting that civil penalty. In addition to the civil 

penalty assessed pursuant to this section, the person also shall pay any fee assessed by the attorney 

general for collection of the civil penalty. 

(E) The authority provided to the commission pursuant to this section, and any fine imposed under this 

section, shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, all penalties and other remedies provided in this 

chapter. Any fines collected pursuant to this section shall be used solely to administer and enforce this 
chapter and rules adopted under it. Any fees collected pursuant to this section shall be transmitted to 

the treasurer of state and shall be credited to the manufactured homes commission regulatory fund 

created in section 4781.54 of the Revised Code and the rules adopted thereunder. The fees shall be 
used only for the purpose of administering and enforcing sections 4781.26 to 4781.35 of the Revised 
Code and the rules adopted thereunder. 

(F) As used in this section, "violation" means a violation of section 4781.11, 4781.16, or 4781.27, or 
any rule adopted pursuant to section 4781.04, of the Revised Code. 

Added by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

4781.13 Deposit of receipts. 

The manufactured homes commiSSion, shall deposit all receipts, from any source, in the state treasury 
to the credit of the occupational licensing and regulatory fund. 
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Effective Date: 08-06-2004 

4781.14 Exclusivitv of authority. 

(A) The manufactured homes commission, has exclusive authority to regulate manufactured home 
installers, the installation of manufactured housing, and manufactured housing foundations and 
support systems in this state. By enacting this chapter, it is the Intent of the general assembly to 
preempt municipal corporations and other political subdivisions from regulating and licensing 
manufactured housing installers and regulating and inspecting the installation of manufactured housing 
and manufactured housing foundations and support systems. 

(B) The manufactured homes commission has exclusive power to adopt rules of uniform application 
throughout the state governing installation of manufactured housing, the inspection of manufactured 
housing foundations and support systems, the inspection of the installation of manufactured housing, 
the training and licensing of manufactured housing installers, and the investigation of complaints 
concerning manufactured housing Installers. 

(C) The rules the commission adopts pursuant to this chapter are the exclusive rules governing the 
installation of manufactured housing, the design, construction, and approval of foundations for 
manufactured housing, the licensure of manufactured home installers, and the fees charged for 
licensure of manufactured home installers. No political subdivision of the state or any department or 
agency of the state may establish any other standards governing the installation of manufactured 
housing, manufactured housing foundations and support systems, the licensure of manufactured 
housing installers, or fees charged for the licensure of manufactured housing installers. 

(D) Nothing in this section limits the authority of the attorney general to enforce Chapter 1345. of the 
Revised Code or to take any action permitted by the Revised Code against manufactured housing 
installers, retailers, or manufacturers. 

Amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 08-06-2004 

4781.15 Remedies not exclusive. 

The remedies provided in this chapter are in addition to remedies otherwise available for the same 
conduct under state or local law. 

Amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 08-06-2004 

4781.16 Display, sale, purchase, or brokerage of manufactured or 
mobile homes. 

CA) Except as provided in division (E) of this section, no person shall do any of the following: 
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(1) Engage In the business of displaying or selling at retail manufactured homes or mobile homes or 
assume to engage in that business, unless the person is licensed as a manufactured housing dealer 
under this chapter, or is a salesperson licensed under this chapter and employed by a licensed 
manufactured housing dealer; 

(2) Make more than five casual sales of manufactured homes or mobile homes in a twelve-month 
period without obtaining a license as a manufactured housing dealer under this chapter; 

(3) Purchase a manufactured home directly from the manufacturer without obtaining a license as a 
manufactured housing dealer under this chapter; 

(4) Engage in the business of brokering manufactured homes unless that person is licensed as a 
manufactured housing broker under this chapter or licensed as a real estate broker or salesperson 
pursuant to Chapter 4735. of the Revised Code. 

(6)(1) Except as provided in this division, no manufactured housing dealer shall sell, display, offer for 
sale, or deal in manufactured homes or mobile homes at any place except an established place of 
business that is used exclusively for the purpose of selling, displaying, offering for sale, or dealing in 
manufactured homes or mobile homes. 

(2) No manufactured housing broker shall engage in the business of brokering manufactured or mobile 
homes at any place except an established place of business that Is used exclusively for the purpose of 
brokerlng manufactured and mobile homes. 

(3) A place of business used for the brokering or sale of manufactured homes or mobile homes is 
considered to be used exclusively for brokering, selling, displaying, offering for sale, or dealing in 
manufactured or mobile homes even though industrialized units, as defined by section 3781.06 of the 
Revised Code, are brokered, sold, displayed, offered for sale, or dealt at the same place of business. 

(4) If the licensed manufactured housing dealer is a manufactured home park operator, then all of the 
following apply: 

(a) An established place of business that is located in the operator's manufactured home park and that 
is used for selling, leasing, and renting manufactured homes and mobile homes in that manufactured 
home park Is considered to be used exclusively for that purpose even though rent and other activities 
related to the operation of the manufactured home park take place at the same location or office. 

(b) The dealer's established place of business In the manufactured home park shall be staffed by 
someone licensed and regulated under this chapter who could reasonably assist any retail customer 
with or without an appointment, but such established place of business need not satisfy office size, 
display lot size, and physical barrier requirements applicable to other used motor vehicle dealers. 

(c) The manufactured and mobile homes being offered for sale, lease, or rental by the dealer may be 
located on individual rental lots inside the operator's manufactured home park. (C) Nothing in this 
chapter shall be construed as prohibiting the sale of a new or used manufactured or mobile home 
located in a manufactured home park by a licensed manufactured housing dealer. 

(D) Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit persons licensed under this chapter from 

httn·//{'.()rip(;: ohio oov/nrr./4.7R 1 1/1?71?01 ? 



Lawriter - ORC - Chapter 4781: MANUFACTURED HOMES Page 19 of45 

making sales calls. 

(E)(1) This chapter does not apply to mortgagees selling at retail only those manufactured homes or 
mobile homes that have come into their possession by a default in the terms of a mortgage contract. 

(2) When a partnership licensed under this chapter is dissolved by death, the surviving partners may 
operate under the manufactured housing dealer license for a period of sixty days, and the heirs or 
representatives of deceased persons and receivers or trustees in bankruptcy appointed by any 
competent authority may operate under the license of the person succeeded in possession by that heir, 
representative, receiver, or trustee in bankruptcy. 

Amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Added by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 7/1/2010. 

See 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, §745.20. 

4781.17 Manufactured housing dealer's or broker's licenses. 

(A) Each person applying for a manufactured housing dealer's license or manufactured housing 
broker's license shall complete and deliver to the manufactured homes commission, before the first 
day of April, a separate application for license for each county in which the business of selling or 
brokerlng manufactured or mobile homes is to be conducted. The application shall be in the form 
prescribed by the commission and accompanied by the fee established by the commission. The 
applicant shall sign and swear to the application that shall include all of the following: 

(1)Name of applicant and location of principal place of business; 

(2) Name or style under which business is to be conducted and, if a corporation, the state of 
incorporation; 

(3)Name and address of each owner or partner and, if a corporation, the names of the officers and 
directors; 

(4)The county in which the business is to be conducted and the address of each place of business 
therein; 

(5) A statement of the previous history, record, and association of the applicant and of each owner, 
partner, officer, and director, that is sufficient to establish to the satisfaction of the commission the 
reputation in business of the applicant; 

(6) A statement showing whether the applicant has previously applied for a manufactured housing 
dealer's license, manufactured housing broker's license, manufactured housing salesperson's license, 
or, prior to July 1, 2010, a motor vehicle dealer's license, manufactured home broker's license, or 
motor vehicle salesperson's license, and the result of the application, and whether the applicant has 
ever been the holder of any such license that was revoked or suspended; 
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(7)If the applicant is a corporation or partnership, a statement showing whether any partner, 
employee, officer, or director has been refused a manufactured housing dealer's license, manufactured 
housing broker's license, manufactured housing salesperson's license, or, prior to July 1, 2010, a 
motor vehicle dealer's license, manufactured home broker's license, or motor vehicle salesperson's 
license, or has been the holder of any such license that was revoked or suspended; 

(8)Any other information required by the commission. 

(6) Each person applying for a manufactured housing salesperson's license shall complete and deliver 
to the manufactured homes commission before the first day of July an application for license. The 
application shall be in the form prescribed by the commission and shall be accompanied by the fee 
established by the commission. The applicant shall sign and swear to the application that shall include 
all of the following: 

(l)Name and post-office address of the applicant; 

(2)Name and post-office address of the manufactured housing dealer or manufactured housing broker 
for whom the applicant Intends to act as salesperson; 

(3) A statement of the applicant's previous history, record, and association, that is sufficient to 
establish to the satisfaction of the commission the applicant's reputation in business; 

(4) A statement as to whether the applicant intends to engage in any occupation or business other 
than that of a manufactured housing salesperson; 

(S)A statement as to whether the applicant has ever had any previous application for a manufactured 
housing salesperson license refused or, prior to July 1, 2010, any application for a motor vehicle 
salesperson license refused, and whether the applicant has previously had a manufactured housing 
salesperson or motor vehicle salesperson license revoked or suspended; 

(6) A statement as to whether the applicant was an employee of or salesperson for a manufactured 
housing dealer or manufactured housing broker whose license was suspended or revoked; 

(7) A statement of the manufactured housing dealer or manufactured housing broker named therein, 
designating the applicant as the dealer's or broker's salesperson; 

(8)Any other information required by the commission. 

(C)Any application for a manufactured housing dealer or manufactured housing broker delivered to the 
commission under this section also shall be accompanied by a photograph, as prescribed by the 
commission, of each place of business operated, or to be operated, by the applicant. 

(D)The manufactured homes commission shall deposit all license fees into the state treasury to the 
credit of the occupational licensing and regulatory fund. 

Added by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 7/1/2010. 
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4781.18 Cause for license denial. 

(A) The manufactured homes commission shall deny the application of any person for a license as a 

manufactured housing dealer or manufactured housing broker and refuse to issue the license if the 
commission finds that any of the following is true of the applicant: 

(l)The applicant has made any false statement of a material fact in the application. 

(2)The applicant has not complied with this chapter or the rules adopted by the commission under this 
chapter. 

(3) The applicant is of bad business repute or has habitually defaulted on financial obligations. 

(4)The applicant has been guilty of a fraudulent act in connection with seiling or otherwise dealing In 

manufactured housing or in connection with brokering manufactured housing. 

(5)The applicant has entered into or is about to enter into a contract or agreement with a 
manufacturer or distributor of manufactured homes that is contrary to the requirements of this 

chapter. 

(6)The applicant is insolvent. 

(7) The applicant Is of insufficient responsibility to ensure the prompt payment of any final judgments 

that might reasonably be entered against the applicant because of the transaction of business as a 

manufactured housing dealer or manufactured housing broker during the period of the license applied 
for, or has failed to satisfy any such judgment. 

(8) The applicant has no established place of business that, where applicable, is used or will be used 

for the purpose of selling, displaying, offering for sale or dealing In manufactured housing at the 
location for which application Is made. 

(9) Within less than twelve months prior to making application, the applicant has been denied a 
manufactured housing dealer's license or manufactured housing broker's license, or has any such 

license revoked. 

(6) The commission shall deny the application of any person for a license as a salesperson and refuse 

to issue the license if the commission finds that any of the following is true of the applicant: 

(l)The applicant has made any false statement of a material fact in the application. 

(2)The applicant has not complied with this chapter or the rules adopted by the commission under this 
chapter. 

(3) The applicant is of bad business repute or has habitually defaulted on financial obligations. 

(4)The applicant has been guilty of a fraudulent act in connection with seiling or otherwise dealing in 
manufactured housing. 
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(5) The applicant has not been designated to act as salesperson for a manufactured housing dealer or 
manufactured housing broker licensed to do business in this state under this chapter, or intends to act 
as salesperson for more than one licensed manufactured housing dealer or manufactured housing 
broker at the same time, unless the licensed dealership is owned or operated by the same corporation, 
regardless of the county in which the dealership's facility is located. 

(6) The applicant holds a current manufactured housing dealer's or manufactured housing broker's 
license issued under this chapter, and intends to act as salesperson for another licensed manufactured 

housing dealer or manufactured housing broker. 

(7) Within less than twelve months prior to making application, the applicant has been denied a 

salesperson's license or had a salesperson's license revoked. 

(8) The applicant was salesperson for, or in the employ of, a manufactured housing dealer or 
manufactured housing broker at the time the dealer's or broker's license was revoked. 

(C)If an applicant for a manufactured housing dealer or manufactured housing broker's license is a 
corporation or partnership, the commission may refuse to Issue a license if any officer, director, or 

partner of the applicant has been guilty of any act or omission that would be cause for refusing or 

revoking a license issued to such officer, director, or partner as an individual. The commission's finding 
may be based upon facts contained in the application or upon any other Information the commission 
may have. 

(D) Notwithstanding division (A)(4) of this section, the commission shall not deny the application of 

any person and refuse to issue a license if the commission finds that the applicant is engaged or will 

engage in the business of selling at retail any new manufactured homes and demonstrates that the 

applicant has posted a bond, surety, or certificate of deposit with the commission In an amount not 
less than one hundred thousand dollars for the protection and benefit of the applicant's customers. 

(E)A decision made by the commission under this section may be based upon any statement contained 
in the application or upon any facts within the commission's knowledge. 

(F)Immediately upon denying an application for any of the reasons in this section, the commission 
shall enter a final order together with the commission's findings. If the application is denied by the 

executive director of the commission under authority of section 4781.05 of the Revised Code, the 

executive director shall enter a final order together with the director's findings and certify the same to 

the commission. The commission shall issue to the applicant a written notice of refusal to grant a 
license that shail disclose the reason for refusal. 

Added by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 7/1/2010. 

4781.19 Issuance and replacement of licenses. 

(A) At the time the manufactured homes commission grants the application of any person for a license 
as a manufactured housing dealer, manufactured housing broker, or manufactured housing 
salesperson, the commission shall issue to the person a license that includes the name and post-office 
address of the person licensed. If a manufactured housing dealer or manufactured housing broker has 
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more than one place of business in a county, the dealer or broker shall make application, in such form 
as the commission prescribes, for a certified copy of the license issued to the dealer or broker for each 
place of business in the county. 

(B) The commission may require each applicant for a manufactured housing dealer's license, 
manufactured housing broker's license, and manufactured housing salesperson's license issued under 
this chapter to pay an additional fee, which shall be used by the commission to pay the costs of 
obtaining a record of any arrests and convictions of the applicant from the bureau of Identification and 
investigation. The amount of the fee shall be equal to that paid by the commission to obtain such 
record. 

(C)In the event of the loss, mutilation, or destruction of a manufactured housing dealer's license, 
manufactured housing broker's license, or manufactured housing salesperson's license, any licensee 
may make application to the commission, in the form prescribed by the commission, for a duplicate 
copy thereof and pay a fee established by the commission. 

(D) All manufactured housing dealers' licenses, all manufactured housing brokers' licenses, and all 
manufactured housing salespersons' licenses issued or renewed shall expire biennially on a day within 
the two-year cycle that is prescribed by the manufactured homes commission, unless sooner 
suspended or revoked. Before the first day after the day prescribed by the commission In the year that 
the license expires, each licensed manufactured housing dealer, manufactured housing broker, and 
manufactured housing salesperson, in the year in which the license will expire, shall file an application, 
in such form as the commission prescribes, for the renewal of such license. The fee required by this 
section for the original license shall accompany the application. 

(E) Each manufactured housing dealer and manufactured housing broker shall keep the license or a 
certified copy thereof and a current list of the dealer's or the broker's licensed salespersons, showing 
the names, addresses, and serial numbers of their licenses, posted in a conspicuous place in each 
place of business. Each salesperson shall carry the salesperson's license or a certified copy thereof and 
shall exhibit such license or copy upon demand to any inspector of the commission, state highway 
patrol trooper, police officer, or person with whom the salesperson seeks to transact business as a 
manufactured housing salesperson. 

Added by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 7/1/2010. 

4781.20 Confidentiality of license applications. 

The applications for licenses submitted under section 4781.17 of the Revised Code are not part of the 
public records but are confidential information for the use of the manufactured homes commission. No 
person shall divulge any information contained in such applications and acquired by the person in the 
person's capacity as an official or employee of the manufactured homes commission, except in a report 
to the commission, or when called upon to testify in any court or proceeding. 

Added by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 7/1/2010. 

4781.21 License suspension of revocation. 
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(Al The manufactured homes commission may make rules governing its actions relative to the 
suspension and revocation of manufactured housing dealers', manufactured housing brokers', and 
manufactured housing salespersons' licenses, and may, upon its own motion, and shall, upon the 
verified complaint In writing of any person, investigate the conduct of any licensee under this chapter. 
The commission shall suspend, revoke, or refuse to renew any manufactured housing dealer's, 
manufactured housing broker's, or manufactured housing salesperson's license, if any ground existed 
upon which the license might have been refused, or if a ground exists that would be cause for refusal 
to issue a license. 

The commission may suspend or revoke any license if the licensee has in any manner violated the 
rules adopted by the commission under this chapter, or has been convicted of committing a felony or 
violating any law that in any way relates to the selling, taXing, licensing, or regulation of sales of 
manufactured or mobile homes. 

(Bl Any salesperson's license shall be suspended upon the termination, suspension, or revocation of 
the license of the manufactured housing dealer or manufactured housing broker for whom the 
salesperson is acting, or upon the salesperson leaving the service of the manufactured housing dealer 
or manufactured housing broker. Upon the termination, suspension, or revocation of the license of the 
manufactured housing dealer or manufactured housing broker for whom the salesperson is acting, or 
upon the salesperson leaving the service of a licensed manufactured housing or manufactured housing 
broker, the licensed salesperson may make application to the commission, in such form as the 
commission prescribes, to have the salesperson's license reinstated, transferred, and registered as a 
salesperson for another dealer or broker. If the information contained in the application is satisfactory 
to the commission, the commission shall reinstate, transfer, or register the salesperson's license as a 
salesperson for other dealer or broker. The commission shall establish the fee for the reinstatement 
and transfer of license. No license issued to a dealer, broker, or salesperson under this chapter may be 
transferred to a ny other person. 

(C) Any person whose manufactured housing dealer's license, manufactured housing broker's license, 
or manufactured housing salesperson's license is revoked, suspended, denied, or not renewed may 
request an adjudication hearing on the matter within thirty days after receipt of the notice of the 
action. If no appeal is taken within thirty days after receipt of the order, the order is final and 
conclUSive. All appeals must be by petition in writing and verified under oath by the applicant whose 
application for license has been revoked, suspended, denied, or not renewed and must set forth the 
reason for the appeal and the reason why, in the petitioner's opinion, the order is not correct. In such 
appeals the board may make investigation to determine the correctness and legality of the appealed 
order. The hearing shall be held in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code. 

Added by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 7/1/2010. 

4781.22 Prohibited actions. 

No manufactured housing dealer licensed under this chapter shall do any of the following: 

(Al Directly or indirectly, solicit the sale of a manufactured home or mobile home through an 
interested person other than a salesperson licensed in the employ of a licensed dealer; 
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(B)Pay any commission or compensation in any form to any person in connection with the sale of a 
manufactured home or mobile home unless the person is licensed as a salesperson in the employ of 
the dealer; 

(C) Fail to Immediately notify the manufactured homes commission upon termination of the 
employment of any person licensed as a salesperson to sell, display, offer for sale, or deal in 
manufactured homes or mobile homes for the dealer. 

Added by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 7/1/2010. 

4781.23 Notification requirements. 

(A) Each licensed manufactured housing dealer and manufactured housing broker shall notify the 
manufactured homes commission of any change in status as a manufactured housing dealer or 
manufactured housing broker during the period for which the dealer or broker is licensed, if the change 
of status concerns either of the following: 

(l)Personnel of owners, partners, officers, or directors; 

(2)Location of an office or principal place of business. 

(B) The notification required by division (A) of this section shall be made by filing with the commission, 
within fifteen days after the change of status, a supplemental statement in a form prescribed by the 
commission showing in what respect the status has been changed. 

The commission may adopt a rule exempting from the notification requirement of division (A)(l) of this 
section any dealer if stock in the dealer or its parent company is publicly traded and if there are public 
records filed with and in the possession of state or federal agencies that provide the information 
required by division (A)(l) of this section. 

Added by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 7/1/2010. 

4781.24 Manufactured or mobile home - sales contracts. 

(A) Every retail sale of a manufactured home or mobile home shall be preceded by a written contract 
that shall contain all of the agreements of the parties and shall be signed by the buyer and the seller. 
The seller, upon execution of the contract and before the delivery of the manufactured or mobile 
home, shall deliver to the buyer a copy of the contract that shall clearly describe all of the following: 

(l)The home sold to the buyer, including, where applicable, its vehicle identification number; 

(2)The sale price of the home, and, if applicable, the amount paid down by the buyer; 

(3)The amount credited to the buyer for any trade-in and a description thereof; 

(4)The amount of any finance charge; 
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(S)The amount charged for any home Insurance and a statement of the types of insurance provided by 
the policy or policies; 

(6)The amount of any other charge and a specification of its purpose; 

(7)The net balance of payment due from the buyer Including the terms of the payment of the net 
balance. 

(B) A manufactured housing dealer may contract for and receive a documentary service charge for a 
retail sale of a manufactured home or mobile home. The documentary service charge shall be specified 

in writing without itemization of the individual services provided and shall not be more than the lesser 
of the following: 

(1) The amount allowed in a retail installment contract; 

(2) Ten per cent of the amount the buyer is required to pay pursuant to the contract, excluding tax, 
title, and registration fees, and any negative equity adjustment. 

(C) This section does not apply to a casual sale of a manufactured home or mobile home. 

Added by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 7/1/2010. 

4781.25 Rules and regulations for manufactured housing brokers. 

The manufactured homes commission shall adopt rules for the regulation of manufactured housing 
brokers in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code. The rules shall require that a 

manufactured housing broker maintain a bond of a surety company authorized to transact business in 

this state in an amount determined by the commission. The rules also shall require each person 

licensed as a manufactured housing broker to maintain at all times a special or trust bank account that 
Is noninterest-bearing, is separate and distinct from any personal or other account of the broker, and 

Into which shall be deposited and maintained all escrow funds, security deposits, and other moneys 
received by the broker in a fiduciary capacity. In a form determined by the commission, a 

manufactured housing broker shall submit written proof to the commission of the continued 

maintenance of the special or trust account. A depository where special or trust accounts are 
maintained in accordance with this section shall be located in this state. 

Added by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 7/1/2010. 

4781.26 Rules of uniforma application for manufactured home 
parks; contracts for inspections. 

(A) The manufactured homes commission, subject to Chapter 119. of the Revised Code, shall adopt, 
and has the exclusive power to adopt, rules of uniform application throughout the state governing the 

review of plans, issuance of flood plain management permits, and Issuance of licenses for 
manufactured home parks; the location, layout, density, construction, drainage, sanitation, safety, and 
operation of those parks; and notices of flood events concerning, and flood protection at, those parks. 
The rules pertaining to flood plain management shall be consistent with and not less stringent than the 
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flood plain management criteria of the national flood insurance program adopted under the "National 
Flood Insurance Act of 1968," 82 Stat. 572,42 U.S.C.A. 4001, as amended. The rules shall not apply 
to the construction, erection, or manufacture of any building to which section 3781.06 of the Revised 
Code is applicable. 

(B) The rules pertaining to manufactured home parks constructed after June 30, 1971, shall specify 
that each home must be placed on its lot to provide not less than fifteen feet between the side of one 
home and the side of another home, ten feet between the end of one home and the side of another 

home, and five feet between the ends of two homes placed end to end. 

(C) The manufactured homes commission shall determine compliance with the installation, blocking, 
tiedown, foundation, and base support system standards for manufactured housing located in 
manufactured home parks adopted by the commission pursuant to section 4781.04 of the Revised 

Code. All inspections of the Installation, blocking, tied own, foundation, and base support systems of 
manufactured housing in a manufactured home park that the commission conducts shall be conducted 

by a person the manufactured homes commission certifies pursuant to section 4781.07 of the Revised 
Code. 

(D) The manufactured homes commission may enter into contracts for the purpose of fulfilling the 
commission's annual inspection responsibilities for manufactured home parks under this chapter. 

Boards of health of city or general health districts shall have the right of first refusal for those 
contracts. 

Renumbered from §3733.02 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, 
eff. 9/10/2012. 

Amended by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 1/1/2010. 

Effective Date: 08-06-2004; 10-13-2004 

4781.27 License to operate park. 

(A)(l) On or after the first day of December, but before the first day of January of the next year, every 

person who intends to operate a manufactured home park shall procure a license to operate the park 

for the next year from the manufactured homes commission. If the applicable license fee prescribed 
under section 4781.28 of the Revised Code is not received by the commission by the close of business 
on the last day of December, the applicant for the license shall pay a penalty equal to twenty-five per 

cent of the applicable license fee. The penalty shall accompany the license fee. If the last day of 
December is not a business day, the penalty attaches upon the close of business on the next business 
day. 

(2) No manufactured home park shall be maintained or operated in this state without a license. 

(3) No person who has received a license, upon the sale or disposition of the manufactured home park, 
may have the license transferred to the new operator. A person shall obtain a separate license to 
operate each manufactured home park. 
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(B) Before a license Is initially issued and annually thereafter, or more often if necessary, the 
commission shall cause each manufactured home park to be inspected for compliance with sections 
4781.26 to 4781.35 of the Revised Code and the rules adopted under those sections. A record shall be 
made of each inspection on a form prescribed by the commission. 

(C) Each person applying for an Initial license to operate a manufactured home park shall provide 
acceptable proof to the commission that adequate fire protection will be provided and that applicable 
fire codes will be adhered to in the construction and operation of the park. 

Renumbered from §3733.03 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, 
eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 06-23-1994; 10-13-2004 

4781.28 Fees. 

The manufactured homes commission may charge a fee for an annual license to operate a 
manufactured home park. The fee for a license shall be determined in accordance with section 4781.26 

of the Revised Code and shall include the cost of licensing and all inspections. 

Any fees collected shall be transmitted to the treasurer of state and shall be credited to the 

manufactured homes commission regulatory fund created in section 4781.54 of the Revised Code and 

used only for the purpose of administering and enforcing sections 4781.26 to 4781.35 of the Revised 
Code and the rules adopted thereunder. 

Renumbered from §3733.04 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, 

eff. 9/10/2012. 

Amended by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 10/16/2009. 

Effective Date: 11-05-1992; 10-13-2004 

4781.29 License - refusal to grant, suspension, revocation. 

The manufactured homes commission may refuse to grant, may suspend, or may revoke any license 

granted to any person for failure to comply with sections 4781.26 to 4781.35 of the Revised Code or 
with any rule adopted under section 4781.26 of the Revised Code. 

Renumbered from §3733.05 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, 
eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 11-05-1992; 10-13-2004 

4781.30 Rights of operators. 

(A) Upon a license being issued under sections 4781.27 to 4781.29 of the Revised Code, any operator 

shall have the right to rent or use each lot for the parking or placement of a manufactured home or 
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mobile home to be used for human habitation without interruption for any period coextensive with any 
license or consecutive licenses issued under sections 4781.27 to 4781.29 of the Revised Code. 

(B) No operator of a manufactured home park shall sell individual lots in a park for eight years 

following the issuance of the initial license for the park unless, at the time of sale, the park fulfills all 
platting and subdivision requirements established by the political subdivision in which the park is 
located, or the political subdivision has entered Into an agreement with the operator regarding platting 
and subdivision requirements and the operator has fulfilled the terms of that agreement. 

Renumbered from §3733.06 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, 

eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 03-30-1999; 10-13-2004 

4781.301 Fees in lieu of license and inspection fees. 

Fees authorized or charged under sections 4781.31, 4781.32, and 4781.28 of the Revised Code are in 

lieu of all license and inspection fees on or with respect to the operation or ownership of manufactured 
home parks within this state, except that the licensor may charge additional reasonable fees for the 

collection and bacteriological examination of any necessary water samples taken from any such park. 

Renumbered from §3733.07 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, 

eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 11-05-1992 

4781.31 Submitting development plans to commission. 

(A) No person shall cause development to occur within any portion of a manufactured home park until 

the plans for the development have been submitted to and reviewed and approved by the 
manufactured homes commission. This division does not require that plans be submitted to the 

commission for approval for the replacement of manufactured or mobile homes on previously approved 

lots In a manufactured home park when no development is to occur In connection with the 
replacement. Within thirty days after receipt of the plans, all supporting documents and materials 

required to complete the review, and the applicable plan review fee established under division (D) of 

this section, the commission shall approve or disapprove the plans. 

(B) Any person aggrieved by the commission's disapproval of a set of plans under division (A) of this 
section may request a hearing on the matter within thirty days after receipt of the commission's notice 

of the disapproval. The hearing shall be held in accordance with Chapter 119. of the Revised Code. 
Thereafter, the disapproval may be appealed in the manner provided in section 119.12 of the Revised 
Code. 

(C) The commission shall establish a system by which development occurring within a manufactured 

home park Is inspected or verified in accordance with rules adopted under section 4781.26 of the 
Revised Code to ensure that the development complies with the plans approved under division (A) of 
this section. 
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(D) The commission shall establish fees for reviewing plans under division (A) of this section and 
conducting inspections under division (C) of this section. 

(E) The commission shall charge the appropriate fees established under division (D) of this section for 
reviewing plans under division (A) of this section and conducting inspections under division (C) of this 
section. All such plan review and inspection fees received by the commission shall be transmitted to 
the treasurer of state and shall be credited to the occupational licensing and regulatory fund created in 

section 4743.05 of the Revised Code. Moneys so credited to the fund shall be used only for the 
purpose of administering and enforcing sections 4781.26 to 4781.35 of the Revised Code and rules 
adopted under those sections. 

(F) Plan approvals issued under this section do not constitute an exemption from the land use and 
building requirements of the political subdivision in which the manufactured home park is or is to be 
located. 

Renumbered from §3733.021 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 
101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 03-30-1999; 10-13-2004 

4781.32 Permit for developing in flood plain. 

(A) No person shall cause development to occur or cause the replacement of a mobile or manufactured 
home within any portion of a manufactured home park that is located within a one-hundred-year flood 

plain unless the person first obtains a permit from the manufactured homes commission. If the 

development for which a permit is required under this division is to occur on a lot where a mobile or 
manufactured home is or is to be located, the owner of the home and the operator of the 

manufactured home park shall jointly obtain the permit. Each of the persons to whom a permit is 

jointly issued Is responsible for compliance with the provisions of the approved permit that are 
applicable to that person. 

The commission shall disapprove an application for a permit required under this division unless the 

commission finds that the proposed development or replacement of a mobile or manufactured home 
complies with the rules adopted under section 4781.26 of the Revised Code. No permit is required 

under this division for the construction, erection, or manufacture of any building to which section 
3781.06 of the Revised Code applies. 

The commission may suspend or revoke a permit issued under this division for failure to comply with 
the rules adopted under section 4781.26 of the Revised Code pertaining to flood plain management or 

for failure to comply with the approved permit. 

Any person aggrieved by the disapproval, suspension, or revocation of a permit under this division by 
the commission may request a hearing on the matter within thirty days after receipt of the notice of 
the disapproval, suspension, or revocation. The hearing shall be held in accordance with Chapter 119. 

of the Revised Code. Thereafter, an appeal of the disapproval, suspension, or revocation may be taken 
in the manner provided in section 119.12 of the Revised Code. 
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(8) The commission shall establish fees for the Issuance of permits under division (A) of this section 
and for necessary inspections conducted to determine compliance with those permits. 

(C) The commission shall charge the appropriate fee established under division (8) of this section for 

the issuance of a permit under division (A) of this section or for conducting any necessary inspection to 
determine compliance with the permit. If the commission issues such a permit or conducts such an 
inspection, the fee for the permit or inspection shall be transmitted to the treasurer of state and shall 
be credited to the occupational licensing and regulatory fund created in section 4743.05 of the Revised 
Code. Moneys so credited to the fund shall be used only for the purpose of administering and enforcing 

sections 4781.26 to 4781.35 of the Revised Code and rules adopted under those sections. 

Renumbered from §3733.022 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, H8 487, § 
101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 03-30-1999 

4781.33 Notice of flood event affecting manufactured home park. 

When a flood event affects a manufactured home park, the operator of the manufactured home park, 

in accordance with rules adopted under section 4781.26 of the Revised Code, shall notify the 
manufactured homes commission and the board of health having jurisdiction where the flood event 

occurred within forty-eight hours after the end of the flood event. The commission, after receiving 
notification, shall immediately notify the board of health. 

After being notified of such a flood event, the board of health shall cause an inspection to be made of 

the manufactured home park named in the notice. The board of health shall issue a report of the 

inspection to the commission within ten days after the Inspection is completed. 

Renumbered from §3733.024 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, H8 487, § 

101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 11-05-1992 

4781.34 Owner to repair home substantially damaged. 

(A) If a mobile or manufactured home that is located in a flood plain Is substantially damaged, the 

owner of the home shall make all alterations, repairs, or changes to the home, and the operator of the 
manufactured home park shall make all alterations, repairs, or changes to the lot on which the home is 

located, that are necessary to ensure compliance with the flood plain management rules adopted under 
section 4781.26 of the Revised Code. Such alterations, repairs, or changes may include, without 

limitation, removal of the home or other structures. 

No person shall fail to comply with this division. 

(8) No person shall cause to be performed any alteration, repair, or change required by division (A) of 

this section unless the person first obtains a permit from the manufactured homes commission. 
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The commission shall disapprove an application for a permit required under this division unless the 
commission finds that the proposed alteration, repair, or change complies with the rules adopted under 
section 4781.26 of the Revised Code. No permit is required under this division for the construction, 
erection, or manufacture of any building to which section 3781.06 of the Revised Code applies. 

The commission may suspend or revoke a permit issued under this division for failure to comply with 
the rules adopted under section 4781.26 of the Revised Code pertaining to flood plain management or 

for failure to comply with the approved permit for making alterations, repairs, or changes to the lot on 
which the manufactured home is located. 

Any person aggrieved by the disapproval, suspension, or revocation of a permit under this division by 
the commission may request a hearing on the matter within thirty days after receipt of the notice of 

the disapproval, suspension, or revocation. The hearing shall be held in accordance with Chapter 119. 
of the Revised Code. Thereafter, an appeal of the disapproval, suspension, or revocation may be taken 
in the manner provided in section 119.12 of the Revised Code and for necessary inspections conducted 

to determine compliance with those permits. 

(C) The commission shall establish fees for the issuance of permits under division (6) of this section 

and for necessary inspections conducted to determine compliance with those permits for making 

alterations, repairs, or changes to the lot on which the manufactured home is located. 

(D) The commission shall charge the appropriate fee established under division (C) of this section for 

the issuance of a permit under division (6) of this section or for conducting any necessary Inspection to 
determine compliance with the permit. If the commission issues such a permit or conducts such an 

Inspection, the fee for the permit or inspection shall be transmitted to the treasurer of state and shall 

be credited to the occupational licensing and regulatory fund created in section 4743.05 of the Revised 

Code. Moneys so credited to the fund shall be used only for the purpose of administering and enforcing 
sections 4781.26 to 4781.35 of the Revised Code and rules adopted under those sections. 

Renumbered from §3733.025 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, H6 487, § 

101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 03-30-1999 

4781.35 Prosecuting violations. 

(A) No person shall violate sections 4781.26 to 4781.35 of the Revised Code or the rules adopted 
thereunder. 

(6) The prosecuting attorney of the county, the city director of law, or the attorney general, upon 

complaint of the manufactured homes commission, shall prosecute to termination or bring an action 
for injunction against any person violating sections 4781.26 to 4781.35 of the Revised Code or the 
rules adopted thereunder. 

Renumbered from §3733.08 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, H6 487, § 101.01, 

eff. 9/10/2012. 
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Effective Date: 11-05-1992 

4781.36 Whistleblower protection. 

(A) Subject to section 4781.37 of the Revised Code, a park operator shall not retaliate against a 
resident by increasing the resident's rent, decreasing services that are due to the resident, refuSing to 

renew or threatening to refuse to renew the rental agreement with the resident, or bringing or 

threatening to bring an action for possession of the resident's premises because: 

(1) The resident has complained to an appropriate governmental agency of a violation of a building, 
housing, health, or safety code that is applicable to the premises, and the violation materially affects 

health and safety; 

(2) The resident has complained to the park operator of any violation of section 4781.38 of the Revised 
Code; 

(3) The resident joined with other residents for the purpose of negotiating or dealing collectively with 

the park operator on any of the terms and conditions of a rental agreement. 

(6) If a park operator acts in violation of division (A) of this section, the resident may: 

(1) Use the retaliatory action of the park operator as a defense to an action by the park operator to 

recover possession of the premises; 

(2) Recover possession of the premises; 

(3) Terminate the rental agreement. 

In addition, the resident may recover from the park operator any actual damages together with 

reasonable attorneys fees. 

(C) Nothing in division (A) of this section prohibits a park operator from increasing the rent to reflect 

the cost of improvements installed by the park operator in or about the premises or to reflect an 

increase in other costs of operation of the premises. 

Renumbered from §3733.09 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, H6 487, § 101.01, 

eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 10-07-1987 

4781.37 Action for possession of the premises. 

(A) NotWithstanding section 4781.36 of the Revised Code, a park operator may bring an action under 

Chapter 1923. of the Revised Code for possession of the premises If any of the following applies: 

(1) The resident is in default in the payment of rent. 

1')1'17/')f\1') 



Lawriter - ORC - Chapter 4781: MANUFACTURED HOMES Page 34 of45 

(2) The violation of the applicable building, housing, health, or safety code that the resident 
complained of was primarily caused by any act or lack of reasonable care by the resident, by any other 
person in the resident's household, or by anyone on the premises with the consent of the resident. 

(3) The resident is holding over the resident's term. 

(4) The resident is in violation of rules of the manufactured homes commission adopted pursuant to 

section 4781.26 of the Revised Code or rules of the manufactured home park adopted pursuant to the 
rules of the commission. 

(5) The resident has been absent from the manufactured home park for a period of thirty consecutive 
days prior to the commencement of the action, and the reSident's manufactured home, mobile home, 

or recreational vehicle parked in the manufactured home park has been left unoccupied for that thirty­
day period, without notice to the park operator and without payment of rent due under the rental 

agreement. 

(B) The maintenance of an action by the park operator under this section does not prevent the resident 
from recovering damages for any violation by the park operator of the rental agreement or of section 

4781.38 of the Revised Code. 

Renumbered from §3733.091 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 

101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 04-03-2003 

4781.38 Obligations of park operator. 

(A) A park operator who is a party to a rental agreement shall: 

(1) Comply with the requirements of all applicable building, housing, health, and safety codes which 

materially affect health and safety, and comply with rules of the manufactured homes commission; 

(2) Make all repairs and do whatever is reasonably necessary to put and keep the premises in a fit and 

habitable condition; 

(3) Keep all common areas of the premises in a safe and sanitary condition; 

(4) Maintain in good and safe working order and condition all electrical and plumbing fixtures and 

appliances, and septic systems, sanitary and storm sewers, refuse receptacles, and well and water 

systems that are supplied or required to be supplied by the park operator; 

(5) Not abuse the right of access conferred by division (B) of section 4781.39 of the Revised Code; 

(6) Except in the case of emergency or if it is impracticable to do so, give the resident reasonable 
notice of the park operator's intent to enter onto the residential premises and enter only at reasonable 

times. Twenty-four hours' notice shall be presumed to be a reasonable notice in the absence of 
evidence to the contrary. 
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(B) If the park operator violates any provision of this section, makes a lawful entry onto the residential 
premises in an unreasonable manner, or makes repeated demands for entry otherwise lawful which 
demands have the effect of harassing the resident, the resident may recover actual damages resulting 
from the violation, entry, or demands and injunctive relief to prevent the recurrence of the conduct, 
and if the resident obtains a judgment, reasonable attorneys' fees, or terminate the rental agreement. 

Renumbered from §3733.10 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, 
eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 02-25-1987 

4781.39 Obligations of resident. 

(A) A resident who is a party to a rental agreement shall: 

(1) Keep that part of the premises that the resident occupies and uses safe and sanitary; 

(2) Dispose of all rubbish, garbage, and other waste In a clean, safe, and sanitary manner; 

(3) Comply with the requirements imposed on residents by all applicable state and local housing, 
health, and safety codes, rules of the manufactured homes commission, and rules of the manufactured 
home park; 

(4) Personally refrain, and forbid any other person who is on the premises with the resident's 
permission, from Intentionally or negligently destroying, defacing, damaging, or removing any fixture, 

appliance, or other part of the residential premises; 

(5) Conduct self and require other persons on the premises with the resident's consent to conduct 
themselves in a manner that will not disturb the resident's neighbors' peaceful enjoyment of the 
manufactured home park. 

(B) The resident shall not unreasonably withhold consent for the park operator to enter the home to 
inspect utility connections, or enter onto the premises In order to inspect the premises, make ordinary, 
necessary, or agreed repairs, decorations, alterations, or improvements, deliver parcels which are too 
large for the resident's mail facilities, or supply necessary or agreed services. 

(C) If the resident violates any provision of this section, the park operator may recover any actual 
damages which result from the violation and reasonable attorneys' fees. This remedy is in addition to 
any right of the park operator to terminate the rental agreement, to maintain an action for the 
possession of the premises, or injunctive relief to compel access under division (B) of this section. 

Renumbered from §3733.101 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 
101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 03-30-1999 

4781.40 Rental agreement. 
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(A)(l) The park operator shall offer each home owner a written rental agreement for a manufactured 
home park lot for a term of one year or more that contains terms essentially the same as any 
alternative month-to-month rental agreement offered to current and prospective tenants and owners. 
The park operator shall offer the minimum one-year rental agreement to the owner prior to installation 
of the home in the manufactured home park or, if the home is in the manufactured home park, prior to 
the expiration of the owner's existing rental agreement. 

(2) The park operator shall deliver the offer to the owner by certified mail, return receipt requested, or 
in person. If the park operator delivers the offer to the owner in person, the owner shall complete a 
return showing receipt of the offer. If the owner does not accept the offer, the park operator is 
discharged from any obligation to make any further such offers. If the owner accepts the offer, the 
park operator shall, at the expiration of each successive rental agreement, offer the owner another 
rental agreement, for a term that is mutually agreed upon, and that contains terms essentially the 
same as the alternative month-to-month agreement. The park operator shall deliver subsequent rental 
offers by ordinary mail or personal delivery. If the park operator sells the manufactured home park to 
another manufactured home park operator, the purchaser is bound by the rental agreements entered 
into by the purchaser's predecessor. 

(3) If the park operator sells the manufactured home park for a use other than as a manufactured 
home park, the park operator shall give each tenant and owner a written notification by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, or by handing it to the tenant or owner in person. If the park operator 
delivers the notification in person, the recipient shall complete a return showing receipt of the 
notification. This notification shall contain notice of the sale of the manufactured home park, and notice 
of the date by which the tenant or owner shall vacate. The date by which the tenant shall vacate shall 
be at least one hundred twenty days after receipt of the written notification, and the date by which the 
owner shall vacate shall be at least one hundred eighty days after receipt of the written notification. 

(6) A park operator shall fully disclose in writing all fees, charges, assessments, Including rental fees, 
and rules prior to a tenant or owner executing a rental agreement and assuming occupancy in the 
manufactured home park. No fees, charges, assessments, or rental fees so disclosed may be increased 
nor rules changed by a park operator without specifying the date of Implementation of the changed 
fees, charges, assessments, rental fees, or rules, which date shall be not less than thirty days after 
written notice of the change and its effective date to all tenants or owners in the manufactured home 
park, and no fee, charge, assessment, or rental fee shall be increased during the term of any tenant's 
or owner's rental agreement. Failure on the part of the park operator to fully disclose all fees, charges, 
or assessments shall prevent the park operator from collecting the undisclosed fees, charges, or 
assessments. If a tenant or owner refuses to pay any undisclosed fees, charges, or assessments, the 
refusal shall not be used by the park operator as a cause for eviction in any court. 

(C) A park operator shall promulgate rules governing the rental or occupancy of a lot in the 
manufactured home park. The rules shall not be unreasonable, arbitrary, or capriciOUS. A copy of the 
rules and any amendments to them shall be delivered by the park operator to the tenant or owner 
prior to signing the rental agreement. A copy of the rules and any amendments to them shall be 
posted in a conspicuous place upon the manufactured home park grounds. 

(D) No park operator shall require an owner to purchase from the park operator any personal property. 
The park operator may determine by rule the style or quality of skirting, eqUipment for tying down 
homes, manufactured or mobile home accessories, or other equipment to be purchased by an owner 
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from a vendor of the owner's choosing, provided that the equipment is readily available to the owner. 

Any such equipment shall be Installed In accordance with the manufactured home park rules. 

(E) No park operator shall charge any owner who chooses to install an electric or gas appliance in a 

home an additional fee solely on the basis of the installation, unless the installation is performed by 

the park operator at the request of the owner, nor shall the park operator restrict the installation, 

service, or maintenance of the appliance, restrict the ingress or egress of repairpersons to the 

manufactured home park for the purpose of installation, service, or maintenance of the appliance, nor 

restrict the making of any interior improvement in a home, if the installation or improvement is in 

compliance with applicable building codes and other provisions of law and if adequate utility services 

are available for the installation or Improvement. 

(F) No park operator shall require a tenant to lease or an owner to purchase a manufactured or mobile 

home from the park operator or any specific person as a condition of or prerequisite to entering into a 

rental agreement. 

(G) No park operator shall require an owner to use the services of the park operator or any other 

specific person for installation of the manufactured or mobile home on the residential premises or for 

the performance of any service. 

(H) No park operator shall: 

(1) Deny any owner the right to sell the owner's manufactured home within the manufactured home 

park if the owner gives the park operator ten days' notice of the intention to sell the home; 

(2) Require the owner to remove the home from the manufactured home park solely on the basis of 

the sale of the home; 

(3) Unreasonably refuse to enter into a rental agreement with a purchaser of a home located within 

the operator's manufactured home park; 

(4) Charge any tenant or owner any fee, charge, or assessment, including a rental fee, that is not set 

forth in the rental agreement or, if the rental agreement is oral, is not set forth in a written disclosure 

given to the tenant or owner prior to the tenant or owner entering Into a rental agreement; 

(5) Charge any owner any fee, charge, or assessment because of the transfer of ownership of a home 

or because a home is moved out of or into the manufactured home park, except a charge for the 

actual costs and expenses that are incurred by the park operator in moving the home out of or into the 

manufactured home park, or in installing the home in the manufactured home park and that have not 

been reimbursed by another tenant or owner. 

(I) If the park operator violates any provision of divisions (A) to (H) of this section, the tenant or 

owner may recover actual damages resulting from the violation, and, if the tenant or owner obtains a 

judgment, reasonable attorneys' fees, or terminate the rental agreement. 

(J) No rental agreement shall require a tenant or owner to sell, lease, or sublet the tenant's or owner's 

interest in the rental agreement or the manufactured or mobile home that Is or will be located on the 

lot that is the subject of the rental agreement to any specific person or through any specific person as 
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the person's agent. 

(K) No park operator shall enter into a rental agreement with the owner of a manufactured or mobile 
home for the use of residential premises, if the rental agreement requires the owner of the home, as a 

condition to the owner's renting, occupying, or remaining on the residential premises, to pay the park 
operator or any other person specified in the rental agreement a fee or any sum of money based on 
the sale of the home, unless the owner of the home uses the park operator or other person as the 
owner's agent in the sale of the home. 

(l) A park operator and a tenant or owner may include in a rental agreement any terms and 
conditions, including any term relating to rent, the duration of an agreement, and any other provisions 

governing the rights and obligations of the parties that are not inconsistent with or prohibited by 

sections 3733.09 to 3733.20 of the Revised Code or any other rule of law. 

(M) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Revised Code, the owner of a manufactured or mobile 

home may utilize the services of a manufactured housing dealer or broker licensed under Chapter 
4781. of the Revised Code or a person properly licensed under Chapter 4735. of the Revised Code to 

sell or lease the home. 

Renumbered from §3733.11 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, H6 487, § 101.01, 
eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 03-30-1999; 2007 H656 10-18-2007 

4781.41 Effect of operator's noncompliance with rental 
agreement or statutes. 

(A) If a park operator fails to fulfill any obligation imposed upon the park operator by section 4781.38 

of the Revised Code or by the rental agreement, or the conditions of the premises are such that the 

resident reasonably believes that a park operator has failed to fulfill any such obligations, or a 
governmental agency has found that the premises are not in compliance with building, housing, health, 

or safety codes which apply to any condition of the residential premises that could materially affect the 

health and safety of an occupant, the resident may give notice in writing to the park operator 
specifying the acts, omissions, or code violations that constitute noncompliance with such provisions. 

The notice shall be sent to the person or place where rent is normally paid. 

(6) If a park operator receives the notice described in division (A) of this section and after receipt of 

the notice fails to remedy the condition within a reasonable time, considering the severity of the 
condition and the time necessary to remedy such condition, or within thirty days, whichever is sooner, 

and if the resident is current In rent payments due under the rental agreement, the resident may do 
one of the following: 

(1) Deposit all rent that is due and thereafter becomes due the park operator with the clerk of court of 
the municipal or county court having jurisdiction in the territory in which the residential premises are 

located; 

(2) Apply to the court for an order directing the park operator to remedy the condition. As part thereof, 
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the resident may deposit rent pursuant to division (6)(1) of this section, and may apply for an order 
reducing the periodic rent due the park operator until such time as the park operator does remedy the 
condition, and may apply for an order to use the rent deposited to remedy the condition. In any order 
issued pursuant to this division, the court may require the resident to deposit rent with the clerk of 
court as provided In division (6)(1) of this section. 

Renumbered from §3733.12 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, H6 487, § 101.01, 
eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 02-25-1987 

4781.42 Rent deposits. 

(A) Whenever a resident deposits rent with the clerk of a court as provided in section 4781.41 of the 
Revised Code, the clerk shall give written notice of this fact to the park operator and to the park 

operator's agent, if any. 

(6) The clerk shall place all rent deposited with the clerk in a separate rent escrow account in the 

name of the clerk in a bank or building and loan association domiciled in this state. 

(C) The clerk shall keep in a separate docket an account of each deposit, with the name and address of 
the resident, and the name and address of the park operator and of the park operator's agent, if any. 

(D) For the clerk's costs, the clerk may charge a fee of one per cent of the amount of the rent 
deposited, which shall be assessed as court costs. 

(E) All interest that has accrued on the rent deposited by the clerk of a county court under division (6) 

of this section shall be paid into the treasury of the political subdivision for which the clerk performs 
the clerk's duties. All interest that has accrued on the rent deposited by the clerk of a municipal court 

under division (6) of this section shall be paid Into the city treasury as defined in division (6) of section 

1901.03 ofthe Revised Code. 

Renumbered from §3733.121 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, H6 487, § 

101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 02-25-1987 

4781.43 Applying for release of rent. 

(A) A park operator who receives notice that rent due the park operator has been deposited with a 
clerk of court pursuant to section 4781.41 of the Revised Code, may: 

(1) Apply to the clerk of court for release of the rent on the ground that the condition contained in the 
notice given pursuant to division (A) of section 4781.41 of the Revised Code has been remedied. The 

clerk shall forthwith release the rent, less costs, to the park operator if the resident gives written 
notice to the clerk that the condition has been remedied. 
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(2) Apply to the court for release of the rent on the grounds that the resident did not comply with the 
notice requirement of division (A) of section 4781.41 of the Revised Code, or that the resident was not 
current in rent payments due under the rental agreement at the time the resident Initiated rent 
deposits with the clerk of courts under division (B)(l) of section 4781.41 of the Revised Code; 

(3) Apply to the court for release of the rent on the grounds that there was no violation of any 
obligation imposed upon the park operator by section 4781.38 of the Revised Code or by the rental 

agreement, or by any building, housing, health, or safety code, or that the condition contained in the 
notice given pursuant to division (A) of section 4781.41 of the Revised Code has been remedied. 

(B) The resident shall be named as a party to any action filed by the park operator under this section, 
and shall have the right to file an answer and counterclaim, as in other civil cases. A trial shall be held 

within sixty days of the date of filing of the park operator's complaint, unless for good cause shown the 

court grants a continuance. 

(C) If the court finds that there was no violation of any obligation imposed upon the park operator by 
section 4781.38 of the Revised Code or by the rental agreement, or by any building, housing, health, 

or safety code, or that the condition contained in the notice given pursuant to division (A) of section 
4781.41 of the Revised Code has been remedied, or that the resident did not comply with the notice 

requirement of division (A) of section 4781.41 of the Revised Code, or that the reSident was not 
current in rent payments at the time the resident initiated rent deposits with the clerk of court under 

division (B)(l) of section 4781.41 of the Revised Code, the court shall order the release to the park 

operator of rent on deposit with the clerk, less costs. 

(D) If the court finds that the condition contained in the notice given pursuant to division (A) of section 

4781.41 of the Revised Code was the result of an act or omission of the resident, or that the resident 

intentionally acted in bad faith in proceeding under section 4781.41 of the Revised Code, the resident 
shall be liable for damages caused to the park operator, and for costs, together with reasonable 

attorneys' fees if the reSident intentionally acted in bad faith. 

Renumbered from §3733.122 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 

101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 02-25-1987 

4781.44 Partial release of rent before trial. 

(A) If a park operator brings an action for the release of rent deposited with a clerk of court, the court 
may, during the pendency of the action, upon application of the park operator, release part of the rent 

on deposit for payment of the periodic interest on a mortgage on the premises, the periodic principal 
payments on a mortgage on the premises, the insurance premiums for the premises, real estate taxes 

on the premises, utility services, repairs, and other customary and usual costs of operating the 
premises. 

(B) In determining whether to release rent for the payments described in division (A) of this section, 
the court shall consider the amount of rent the park operator receives from other lots, the cost of 
operating these lots, and the costs which may be required to remedy the condition contained in the 
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notice given pursuant to division (A) of section 4781.41 of the Revised Code. 

Renumbered from §3733.123 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 
101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 01-13-1978 

4781.45 Notification of violation of rules to resident. 

If a resident commits a material Violation of the rules of the manufactured home park, of the 
manufactured homes commission, or of applicable state and local health and safety codes, the park 
operator may deliver a written notification of the Violation to the resident. The notification shall contain 
all of the following: 

(A) A description of the violation; 

(B) A statement that the rental agreement will terminate upon a date specified in the written notice 
not less than thirty days after receipt of the notice unless the resident remedies the violation; 

(C) A statement that the violation was material and that if a second material violation of any park or 
commission rule, or any health and safety code, occurs within six months after the date of this notice, 
the rental agreement will terminate immediately; 

(D) A statement that a defense available to termination of the rental agreement for two material 
violations of park or commission rules, or of health and safety codes, is that the park rule is 
unreasonable, or that the park or commission rule, or health or safety code, is not being enforced 
against other manufactured home park residents, or that the two violations were not willful and not 
committed in bad faith. 

If the resident remedies the condition described in the notice, whether by repair, the payment of 
damages, or otherwise, the rental agreement shall not terminate. The park operator may terminate 
the rental agreement immediately if the resident commits a second material violation of the park or 
commission rules, or of applicable state and local health and safety codes, subject to the defense that 
the park rule Is unreasonable, that the park or commission rule, or health or safety code, is not being 
enforced against other manufactured home park residents, or that the two Violations were not willful 

and not committed in bad faith. 

Renumbered from §3733.13 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, 
eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 02-25-1987 

4781.46 Recovering damages. 

In any action under sections 4781.36 to 4781.52 of the Revised Code, any party may recover damages 
for the breach of contract or the breach of any duty that is imposed by law. 
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Renumbered from §3733.14 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, 

eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 01-13-1978 

4781.47 Rental agreement terms. 

(A) No provision of sections 4781.36 to 4781.52 of the Revised Code may be modified or waived by 

any oral or written agreement except as provided in division (F) of this section. 

(B) No warrant of attorney to confess judgment shall be recognized in any rental agreement or In any 
other agreement between a park operator and resident for the recovery of rent or damages to the 
residential premises. 

(C) No agreement to pay the park operator's or resident's attorney fees shall be recognized in any 
rental agreement for residential premises or in any other agreement between a park operator and 

resident. 

(D) No agreement by a resident to the exculpation or limitation of any liability of the park operator 

arising under law or to indemnify the park operator for that liability or its related costs shall be 

recognized in any rental agreement or In any other agreement between a park operator and resident. 

(E) A rental agreement, or the assignment, conveyance, trust deed, or security instrument of the park 

operator's Interest in the rental agreement may not permit the receipt of rent free of the obligation to 

comply with section 4781.38 of the Revised Code. 

(F) The park operator may agree to assume responsibility for fulfilling any duty or obligation imposed 

on a resident by section 4781.39 of the Revised Code. 

Renumbered from §3733.15 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, 
eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 02-25-1987 

4781.48 Unconscionability. 

(A) If the court as a matter of law finds a rental agreement, or any clause of it, to have been 
unconscionable at the time it was made, it may refuse to enforce the rental agreement or it may 

enforce the remainder of the rental agreement without the unconscionable clause, or it may so limit 
the application of any unconscionable clause as to avoid any unconscionable result. 

(B) When it is claimed or appears to the court that the rental agreement, or any clause of It, may be 
unconscionable, the parties shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to present eVidence as to its 
setting, purpose, and effect to aid the court in making the determination. 

Renumbered from §3733.16 by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, eff. 
9/10/2012. 
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Effective Date: 01-13-1978 

4781.49 Limitating operator's right to recover possession of 
premises. 

(A) No park operator of residential premises shall initiate any act, including termination of utilities or 

services, exclusion from the premises, or threat of any unlawful act, against a resident, or a resident 
whose right to possession has terminated, for the purpose of recovering possession of residential 
premises, other than as provided in Chapters 1923., 4781., and 5303. of the Revised Code. 

(6) No park operator of residential premises shall seize the furnishings or possessions of a resident, or 

of a resident whose right to possession was terminated, for the purpose of recovering rent payments, 
other than in accordance with an order issued by a court of competent jurisdiction. 

(C) A park operator who violates this section is liable in a civil action for all damages caused to a 

resident, or to a resident whose right to possession has terminated, together with reasonable 
attorneys' fees. 

Renumbered from §3733.17 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, H6 487, § 101.01, 
eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 02-25-1987 

4781.50 Security deposit. 

(A) Any security deposit in excess of fifty dollars or one month's periodic rent, whichever is greater, 

shall bear Interest on the excess at the rate of five per cent per annum if the resident remains in 

possession of the premises for six months or more, and shall be computed and paid annually by the 
park operator to the resident. 

(6) Upon termination of the rental agreement any property or money held by the park operator as a 

security deposit may be applied to the payment of past due rent and to the payment of the amount of 
damages that the park operator has suffered by reason of the resident's noncompliance with section 

4781.39 of the Revised Code or the rental agreement. Any deduction from the security deposit shall be 
itemized and identified by the park operator in a written notice delivered to the resident together with 

the amount due, within thirty days after termination of the rental agreement and delivery of 

possession. The resident shall provide the park operator in writing with a forwarding address or new 
address to which the written notice and amount due from the park operator may be sent. If the 
resident fails to provide the park operator with the forwarding or new address as required, the resident 

shall not be entitled to damages or attorneys' fees under division (C) of this section. 

(C) If the park operator fails to comply with division (6) of this section, the resident may recover the 
property and money due the resident, together with damages in an amount equal to the amount 

wrongfully withheld, and reasonable attorneys' fees. 

Renumbered from §3733.18 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, H6 487, § 101.01, 

eff. 9/10/2012. 
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Effective Date: 02-25-1987 

4781.51 Information to be contained in rental agreement. 

(A) Every written rental agreement for residential premises shall contain the name and address of the 

owner of the residential premises and the name and address of the owner's agent, if any. If the owner 
or the owner's agent is a corporation, partnership, limited partnership, association, trust, or other 
entity, the address shall be the principal place of business in the county in which the residential 
premises are situated or if there is no place of business in such county then Its principal place of 

business in this state, and shall include the name of the person In charge thereof. 

(B) If the rental agreement is oral, the park operator, at the commencement of the term of occupancy, 
shall deliver to the resident a written notice containing the information required in division (A) of this 

section. 

(C) If the park operator fails to provide the notice of the name and address of the owner and owner's 

agent, If any, as required under division (A) or (B) of this section, the notices to the park operator 
required under division (A) of sections 4781.41 and 4781.42 of the Revised Code are waived by the 

park operator and the operator's agent. 

(D) Every written rental agreement for residential premises shall contain the following notice in ten­

point boldface type: 

"YOUR RIGHTS AS A RESIDENT AND YOUR MANUFACTURED HOME PARK OPERATOR'S RIGHTS ARE 

PROTECTED BY SECTIONS 4781.36 TO 4781.52 OF THE REVISED CODE, WHICH REGULATE RENTAL 

AGREEMENTS IN MANUFACTURED HOME PARKS." 

If the rental agreement is oral, the park operator, at the commencement of the term of occupancy, 
shall deliver the notice to the resident in writing. 

Renumbered from §3733.19 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, 

eff. 9/10/2012. 

Effective Date: 1998 SB142 03-30-1999 

4781.52 Conflicting ordinances preempted. 

No municipal corporation may adopt or continue in existence any ordinance and no township may 

adopt or continue in existence any resolution that is in conflict with sections 4781.36 to 4781.52 of the 
Revised Code, or that regulates those rights and obligations of parties to a rental agreement that are 

regulated by sections 4781.36 to 4781.52 of the Revised Code. Sections 4781.36 to 4781.52 of the 
Revised Code do not preempt any housing, building, health, or safety codes of any municipal 

corporation or township. 

Renumbered from §3733.20 and amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, 

eff. 9/10/2012. 
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Effective Date: 09-17-1991 

4781.54 Manufactured homes commission regulatory fund. 

There is hereby created in the state treasury the manufactured homes commission regulatory fund. 

The fund shall consist of fees collected under section 4781.121 of the Revised Code and fees paid 
under section 4781.28 of the Revised Code and shall be used for the purposes described in those 
sections. 

Added by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

4781.99 Penalties. 

(A) Whoever violates division (A) of section 4781.16 of the Revised Code is guilty of a minor 

misdemeanor on a first offense and shall be subject to a mandatory fine of one hundred dollars. On a 
second offense, the person is guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree and shall be subject to a 

mandatory fine of one thousand dollars. 

(B) Whoever violates section 4781.20 of the Revised Code is guilty of a minor misdemeanor. 

(C) Whoever violates any of the following is guilty of a misdemeanor of the fourth degree: 

(1) Division (B) or (C) of section 4781.16 of the Revised Code; 

(2) Section 4781.22 of the Revised Code; 

(3) Section 4781.23 of the Revised Code; 

(4) Division (A) of section 4781.24 of the Revised Code; 

(5) Section 4781.25 of the Revised Code; 

(6) Division (A) of section 4781.35 of the Revised Code. 

Amended by 129th General Assembly File No. 127, HB 487, § 101.01, eff. 9/10/2012. 

Added by 128th General Assembly File No.9, HB 1, § 101.01, eff. 7/1/2010. 
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